Vg G
AR

; PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BOARD

Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, June28, 2023

(_)-p?enin g

fTh‘éregular meeting of the City of Lackawanna Planning and Development Board was
dalled to order at 6:00pm,
.P"resent: Galanti, Spahn,Zambron, Friend, Clark

ErgcuSe(l: Algawani, Smith

? "Mdt;ion to approve minutes for the meeting held on 5/31/23; Galanti: Second: Friend

“Allyeas carried 5-0

New Business
Item #1
Special Use Permit Arthur Nowalk
- 126 Cleveland Ave

. | Requesting private detached garage micro-gym
“Arthur Nowak representing

Mr. Nowak explained he is proposing to operate a small micro-gym in his detached
garage located at 126 Cleveland Ave, e described the business model as selling single
=Qr-jc)int family memberships with a three (3) -person maximum at a time in specified
slots. Members can choose available time slots ontine and workout for 1 to 2 hours
maximum. He added that upon request of a membership, applicants submit their driver
licénse and go through his background check. If a membership is denied no other
information about the micro-gym is shared, including the address, If a membership is
approved, six (6) -digit access code is automatically forwarded which will direct
members to the payment form. Once payment is received members then receive the
address and rules for the gym. Mr. Nowak added that everything is controlled remotely

Page 1 of 8



ﬁjm_ﬂhis_ph’one or I-Pad. He is notified through the motion detected security cameras
Wwhen a member unlocks the door or enters the premises,

Clairwoman Galanti asked if this is similar to a personal training scenario and to
elaborate‘on the member access to the premises.

Mr.ﬁ‘g-l}]dﬁéikl—afﬁrmed and stated there were three (3) tenants living upstairs years ago with
three (3) additional cars parked on the street without issues, Iie added that he doesn’t see
any issues currently with having a family membership for a few hours throu ghout the
day..Mr. Nowak added that the garage is sound proof and he might seal the windows and
d661'$. ‘As far as security he added that he has four (4) cameras in the garage with plans to
add fifteen (15) more around the entire property,

. Lo ' . . B .
Member Zambron inquired about the hours of operations and asked if Mr. Nowak would
b’e_'pi‘esenf‘while members are working out.

M1{Nowak stated he would not be there all the time and added the hours of operalion
will be from 7AM to 10PM.

Merhber Zambron asked if there are bathroom facilities,

MlNowak replied yes, there is a bathroom about ten (10) feet from the garage with a
siart-lock on the door. Members will have access to the bathroom through the side door
of the primary residence,

Méni:bgi'jz_gmbron inquired about signage.

M1 Nowak replied there will be none,

Méil?;gﬂgzal‘llbl‘OIl asked about parking,

Mri Nowak replied on-street parking or in the driveway until he arrives home.
TheBéald Ia.sked about how many people will be there at one time,

MlNowak stated three (3) people maximum adding should anyone show up to the
property without permission it is trespassing.

MemhuClaik inquired about public safety and medical emergencies,

MiyNowak explained there is a company on the internet to handle emergency response
S

3
H

Meim, e ‘C:l%ﬁ‘k inquired about calling 911,

i

/. Nowdk-stated that he is able to view on camera and if a member is immobile and on
the glfc{t_nidf.“

MembexCIaxk asked how long of a process from the point the emergency button gets
pushéd for Mr. Nowak to look at the camera and call 911,

M, 'Nowf'ik"replied about five minutes,

Member Zambron asked about smoke alarms,
: HA [E

Pagd 2 of'§ -

1]
ih
LN




Mr..Nofu_}éilg";réplied that he has smoke alarms, a fire extinguisher, and a heating and

cooling split'system which he can control from his phone. He then showed the Board
LR e ,

pictures Andinvited them on a tour of the premises.

1"1$_pa=h‘n inquired about handicapped access and ADA accessibility.

ML NOWI{
gym.’; "

£ O Y b

Member Clark stated that Mr. Nowak cannot deny or prevent someone access to the gym
based on a handicap,

-1'¢'plied that most likely there will be no one who is handicapped that joins the

MiNowak ‘stated he can provide that information on the website,

Mexllt;e1 Spahn stated that the issue is with the ADA law,

The Bosed discussed disability law. |

Chiaiimginéi_n Galanti stated the garage is not a new build.

The Boér‘c} .diISCLISSGd handicapped requirements in accordance with the law.

Néighﬁof G]En I spoke briefly stating that he was originally opposed to the micro-gym
l)lell;[l? 1{10W in support of it.

Motlbh :tcf; table: Clark: Second: Friend

Allyec}s' cf!:a_}:ried 5-0

it
l

Téemi #
Site Plan Review

|
R
i

SRR Bylent Jashari
TR 677 Ridge Rd

Requesting revitalization of the store front with

e installation of new awning, lighting, graphics and windows

Jitl NOWlei representing

Thoay v

Msi éﬁil@l{"itﬁtﬂtes she is from an Erie County appeinted architectural firm for the Store
Eront R-‘Ea\‘f;?t,a[iization grant program.,

Sliq cor}tznuedthai Broadway Bobby’s is a recipient of the grant. The restaurant is
révamping‘thd’storefront by installing new doors, new windows, an awning, and vinyl
eraphics showing more of the inside of the establishment (shows the proposed design to
the Board). ;i

L, Cpp s L . c e : . .
Member.Clark asked if this drawing is consistent with similar businesses in the facade
progran. -t

Page 3 ol§



Ms. Néwipki stated that each one is unique because each storefront has different needs
however this, drawing is common for a two- story “main street” building,

Mem:her Z'a:mb_ron asked if the grant includes cleaning the bricks above the storefront,
MsNowwkl stated that it does not and explained why: Broadway Bobby’s is a tenant of
:tl'ile,f;bujldi‘ng and does not own it. The storefron: grants are only awarded to the business
aﬁplz}{ih’gi for improvements. She added that the building maintenance is the owner’s

responsibility. She furthered that there are limited funds and limited things her firm is
ableito do: |

Membe1 ‘S,p_al:qfn stated that the drawing indicates lighting above the awning and asked if
tlle1'&;fisgligllting intended to be placed below the awning,

Ms. Nowicki replied not at this time.

Chau\;»f mian Galanti askedif the lights on either side of the business will remain there,
MsNowwl stated the security lighting will remain.

Mémb@f Spahn asked if the awning is intended to be opened from underneath.
M:SIF.:‘waicki stated that it will be opened from underneath and from the sides.
Cha‘ir}/\iol{nan Galanti inquired about a time frame for the project.

Ms Nowwkl stated she would like to start something before the winter season however

glie._gipsigf{‘ifsi'currently under a municipal review. She added that the market is flooded
with storefront projects and contractors are scheduling about three months out.
Mb.tioﬁi‘tol::zjibprove: Zambron: Second: Clark

All Vel cartied 5-0

B
I’temﬁS g
Site _Il"lanf’_R_evicw
DN ‘ Daniel Lewis

33-34 Wilkesbarre Ave

e Site Plan Review for rooming house

i 4 1

T S .
D,*anlel‘ Lewls representing
O SR LR

M \ Iew1s stated that he is seeking permission (o continue to lease the buiiding to Sweet
Life tothouse their employees.

ChauWolﬁan Galanti asked if Mr. Lewis hired an architect (o review the property and
prepare the.revised plan in accordance with the city codes, specifically modifying the
origifial whshrooms,

MILGWIS ‘réplied yes.

Pageé{i of'8




v o
B

Chairwoman Galanti asked if the property is currently vacant,
Mr, Lewls answered yes.

TheﬁfBEx&i}d'reviewed the site plans.

Méiﬁf_[ielj:; Spahn asked if the rooming house will provide, handicapped parking spaces,
hovy many spaces there will be, and inquired about the handicap accessibility for the
building. .. -

I\j(h:‘; Lb\ms gfqplied yes, the parking lot is wide open. He added the handicap accessible
parking spots haven’t been painted yet because he wanted the city’s permission to go
forward first, . -

Membe1Spahn stated that all he sees on the floor plan is stairs; he asked how Mr. Lewis
pldns to address handicap accessibility and asked how many parking spaces will be
designated accessible.

Mr Lew1§ replied the parking lot is as large as the building. He added the parking spots
are’ not currently painted but there is plenty of parking in the rear of the building.

Mémb@‘ Spahn stated that, Lewis identifies a number of occupants in his submission to
the Bodrd. He then asked how that number relates to the number of parking spots,

Mlj,. Lewis said there is adequate space in the rear, estimating about twenty to thirty (20-
30) spaces.
el

PRSI N 4 H
Member Zambron stated there are twelve (12) bedrooms listed on the site plan. She asked
if Mr. Lewis expects one (1) person per room,

M1 Le\/\gs ‘fr'ep_lied that there actually has never been more than ten (10) people in the
building/+ .

Memlbm Clark asked Code Enforcement Officers SteveBalon and Scott Hayes if the

1jt1jiibé1f Olf bedrooms relative to bathrooms are in accordance with the city code,
Mr, Baloh and Mr. Hayes both replied yes.

T ; ' s . . . . . . )
Member,Spahn asked if this application is for a special use permit,

Chair'*vyc_)ilg'al,l Galanti stated that it is only for site plan review, adding that the rooming
house does not require a special use permit because it is zoned appropriately.

Ml‘.i'Beizloﬁi;:c::xplained the mixed residential zone for housing (showing to the Board).

,”I‘;he"‘Bqaﬁdi discussed Sucro employees and future of the building.
TR PR X X : o

"zjéihb:ei‘ Clark informed the Board of the time the workers are at the building during the
day. o oo

pdoEi e . . - .

@I}alflf’Wo;é?an Galanti stated the handicap accessibility and parking sports are not shown

Lol il
onithe plaris; -
il

i

MGI‘HEGI Spdhn inquired about the parking requirements for twelve (12) bedrooms.

l, Gt

Pagti5 ofi§: |,

i
E 1



M Bhl‘o:glz'?;é})[ied 1.2 parking spaces.

T he Bbézﬁ?discussed parking spaces.

M_ef;nbéf‘ CI&ii‘k as about the parking lines being identifiable and painted.
M[ Lewmstated he can have lines painted.

Mmﬁmelmk stated that while none of the workers are handicapped, the long-term issue
is to'be able. to accommodate all people with disabilities.
Me-ﬁ}b@?rjspla]m asked about the exterior,

l" ‘. By ‘1. 1 i L

M WI‘S._‘.S_;.E‘ﬁ‘d they will paint the exterior,
SoadF

M '1111}61‘,2;5{51_'611 asked about green space.

Mi %v\“ns -Siated they have someone cutting the grass and taking care of garbage and
maintenahee. :

J‘(fl{?ﬁrﬁ;{fd;ﬁan Galanti stated the Board is missing indication of the handicap accessibility
bl:"i.ﬂ"l% site plan. She added that M, Lewis will need the architect to revise the plans and
$li6W=‘s;idh‘,'in addition to a larger picture of the property showing the entire parking lot
and parking spaces.

Mr, ji‘-I‘;',[eizgi‘s sfated the original plan had handicap in the front,

Kitﬁkf@;_lyiLewis Pastor wife asked why the Board is tabling it for parking spaces and
hgnd_i"é;éip accessibility being that neither of those are necessary for the occupants right
nbw..

?L'Hcl'n. $he added the site plan is what is reviewed and approved and a Planning and

Dé}?é’[?j:ﬁlﬁent:Board must make sure that ail approvals are adequate, appropriate and in
a(‘;_éor’clefthqe_with the city code, as well as the taw, for the future use.

, Ch‘auv\mman Galanti explained that the Board approves the site plan that is presented to

Frirst Wald Councilwoman Amira Muflahi asked where the parking is located.
Qhalrwo'man Galanti replied it is on the rear of the building with access from Lebanon St,

fE‘ijfs!t! V‘Jald Councilwoman Amira Muflahi asked that if the Board votes today, once the
Stl'rco;éniployees move out or the lease is ended the space is already established as a
residence’Monday through Sunday at all hours of the day, and any future occupant or
[ease can ufilize the space accordingly.

QhéﬁlbeﬁlEjllljli Galanti replied that is correct.

I i:i*st Watd Councilwoman Amira Muflahi stated that historically the Planning Board can
1;(—::9511:1_-1‘:[16js‘s?t'es‘that direct neighbors (including herself) had based on former proposals
from the Potters House Church including a domestic violence shelter and transient
houqmg for é‘égently—released prisoners, She furthered that her concern is this approval
pf“gfjl'il’g}‘ppe?ﬁ the'gateway for such when it was previously denied,

3
i Sk




propgrty. i -

Chairw
il

Geb'lge Hﬁlsey stated that the church has met all the housing requirements for this

1_2‘1bn‘uGalanti replied not until the parking and accessibility requirements are met,

ngrgga_'f-;i;ilsgzy affirmed once all code requirements ave met, He added that this doesn’t
have atiything do to with the future of who will live there.

Cha.irWoiﬁzfn_Galanti stated it’s a matter of the site plan; adding that a Planning Board
ngeds fo'efisure that what we are approving and what is needed is represented on the site
plan bresented to the Board,

Gg:mée I"I;é%lsgzy_.:stated once all requirements are met and it conforms with the rules and
r'éér,_ﬁlf”ifipﬁ_s ofthe City that should be the only issue.

gt o . . .
@hafﬁ\}\:fén‘l‘m},(}alantl stated it will come back before the Planning Board and be put to a
vote at that point,

Geot'gio Halsey stated that First Ward Councilwoman (Amira) has gone back 1o the
primaty issue about a proposal submitted by Potters House years ago, The City of
Lécliﬁ?v:a.n11a uinder no circumstances would allow that facility to go there and it is not
going to happen this time around either, Mr. Halsey stated for the record there will be no
housing of that nature on that site. This should not be a recurring issue bringing doubt
nto ﬁ:e’a,lfts and minds. The Church is proposing something that is an asset to the
tommunity and city as a whole. Mr. Halsey continued that individuals that walk up and
down thé, streets in Glover Gardens, Baker Homes, and other various first ward side
streets areifrom far worse backgrounds than the occupants in question here. He furthered
that e all have neighbor issues and problems, but a city should not throw dirt on them.
The, Potiers Church is trying to work with the community so the residents’ lives are
enhianced as well as the City of Lackawanna as a whole,

Yanes$a I—lllu_'f_f‘Brown stated she is a neighbor who resides at 65 Wilkesbarre. Ms. Rrown
stafed thaf shi¢ was there throughout all of the turmoil with the Lackawanna Six. She
qﬂdéd fjt]}&if'jtll"i;OLIgll it all she still feels her neighborhood and the community is safe had
notproblem; with any of the occupants residing (here.

Tahar A_llﬁeiﬂé"stated he is a neighbor residing at 32 Wilkesbarre. Mr. Albana added that
slnc g_é was little he has seen Catholic Charities helping people in need. When Catholic
Ch’:}fitiﬁé%iSOId' the building, he thought the building would be condemned and developed
into a new housing development. He added that he hopes nothing goes there that would
cause, problems for the neighborhood in the future,

TRV TR

Staey: Pettigrew stated that the Potters Church supports all; the Church has an opportunity
for these men to come (o America, live in decent housing, and do respectable work. The
Péiters House: has no intention of harming the community,

L

Lesy Gt he . .
Meniber Cle;ql_g‘ﬂated that the occupants work a very long day; adding that Mr. Lewis as

Lakd ]l i;'clj- cught-fo consider where tenants can go to hang out or sit in the back yard,
e ) I




i
Mr;Lgwis st
camerds, ;i
Motionto

subiission;

éble to for a revised site plan showing handicap

afe'd he would like to put a picnic table in the rear and the building has

accessibility including the

uby njof a larger site plan showing the property with the parking lot entrance off
Lebarion inidicatin

Heball licating adequate park
Clark: Second: Friend

All'yeas ‘cartied 5-0

T
: ARTREEN
T
g
T A P
At ' .l !

Motlon ;%é_j"ﬁdifc)l.1,1'11: Clark: Second:
s e
All yeag barrieds-0

ing for the building for (14.4 spaces), and green space:

Friend

Pugs 80f §



